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(in 000’s) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Income Statement Information
Gross Operating Revenue $65,693 $65,412 $80,632 $80,830 $82,236
Cost of Operations ($48,402) ($50,787) ($67,153) ($70,265) ($72,375)
Gross Operating Profit $17,291 $14,625 $13,478 $10,565 $9,861

Operating Expenses ($15,407) ($12,757) ($10,342) ($10,205) ($10,496)
Other income $2,010 $2,396 $4,063 $5,737 $4,325
Net Operating Profit $3,894 $4,264 $7,199 $6,097 $3,240

Finance Cost, net ($528) ($576) ($854) ($1,023) ($1,155)
Net Income $3,366 $3,688 $6,345 $5,074 $2,085

Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) ($65) ($234) $302 $987 ($281)
Total Comprehensive Income $3,300 $3,454 $6,647 $6,081 $1,803

Balance Sheet Information
Non-current Assets $72,883 $66,214 $70,380 $73,251 $77,737
Current Assets $44,695 $46,955 $43,434 $41,575 $33,993
Total Assets $117,578 $113,169 $113,814 $114,826 $111,730

          
Long-term Liabilities $13,849 $9,817 $11,007 $20,364 $24,225
Current Liabilities $11,030 $12,663 $14,757 $11,985 $11,089
Total Liabilities $24,518 $22,480 $25,764 $32,349 $35,314

      
Shareholders’ Equity $93,059 $90,689 $88,049 $82,477 $76,416
Total Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity $117,578 $113,169 $113,814 $114,826 $111,730

Dividends Declared  $931  $815  $815 $931 $0

Statistical Information (000’s)
Units Sold - kWh 90,999 81,167 78,074 77,406 78,887
Energy Losses - kWh 9,447 10,287 8,670 8,658 7,987
Net Generation (Units Sent Out) - kWh 100,446 91,453 86,744 86,064 86,874
Station Usage - kWh 2,569 2,810 2,760 2,498 2,601
Gross Generation - kWh 103,015 92,264 89,503 88,562 89,475
Fuel Used - Imperial Gallons 5,438 5,060 4,827 4,675 4,771

Selected Financial Information
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear valued shareholders, it is indeed an honour and privilege to enlighten 
you on the performance of the company for the period November 02, 2015 
– November 14, 2016, on behalf of the Board of Directors. 

Objectives
The primary objectives for the year were:

 � Settlement of litigations that were costing the company much 
expenditure, administrative and managerial distractions, and a break 
down in customer and company relations.

 � Expansion of the fossil fuel plant due to its ageing base-load sets and a 
projected increase in demand through an increase in economic activity.

 � Enhancement, expansion and diversification of the renewable initiative 
(that commenced in 2015 under the chairmanship or Mr. Artnell 
Richardson,) with the installation of a 1 Mega watt Solar Farm, at 
Corito. 

 � To work cohesively with government so as to carry out amendments to 
legislation to facilitate legalities during the development of renewables.

 � Facilitate Government and investors with the development of a 
proposed 4 mega watt waste for energy plant at the land fill in Corito.

The above objectives were satisfactorily achieved, with respect to litigation, 
4 legal matters were settled between the company and:-

 � Hughes Medical Center
 � A former internal auditor, Ms. Heather Ritchie.
 � A former General Manger, Mr. Thomas Hodge.
 � Anguilla Development Corporation (ADC)/Cuisinart.

The Sum expended on the above legal matters amounted to approximately 
6 million Dollars (EC$6,000,000.00). It should be noted that Anguilla 
Development Corporation (ADC) Reverse Osmosis Plant Account was off 
the grid for approximately 18 months costing the company an additional 
loss in revenue of approximately $1.2 million dollars ($1.2 M).  

Much thanks and appreciation are extended to my colleagues of the Board 
of Directors for their support in assisting me to reconnect the said consumer 
(ADC) to the grid during May of 2016.  To date it is connected resulting in 
additional revenues of approximately1.1 Million dollars ($1.1M).

Due to a number of factors the Board of Directors, by resolution, instructed 
the CEO to negotiate a loan arrangement with the Caribbean Development 
Bank (CDB) for the purchase of a 5 mega watt wartsila generating set, 
overhaul of ageing switch gears and the expansion of the new plant.  The 
capital development was estimated to cost $16.7 Million.

In July of 2016 a delegation comprising personnel from management, 
technical staff and Board of Directors visited Aruba and held discussions 
with Web and Elmar, the Generation and Transmission and Distribution 
Departments respectively.  After the visit, the Board assigned the CEO the 
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task to continue to develop a working relationship with Aruba as they are 
embarking assiduously on the diversification and expansion of renewable 
energy; in particular, in wind and solar energy.

There was little or no progress made on the 4 mega watt waste for energy 
plant as the investors in question did not prequalify. They were repeatedly 
asked to present financial statements to Anglec, which are yet outstanding.

The former permanent secretary of MICUH reported that the draft 
amendment to the legislation to facilitate the smooth development of 
renewable was, for some time, at Executive Council for discussion and 
possible approval.

Even though my tenure of chairman ended on November 14, 2016, I 
am obligated to report that at the end of the company’s financial year, 
December 31st 2016, revenues were $66 million, compared with budgeted 
revenues of $64.5 million.  This increase was predominantly brought about 
by consumption of kwh by 3 major customers:  The Reef and Zemi Beach 
Hotels, and the R.O. Plant of Cuisinart, which was reconnected.

Total assets amounted to $117 million at the end of December 2016 
an increase of 3.5% over 2015.  Total shareholders equity at December 
2016 was $93.06 million an increase of 2.6 % over 2015.  That figure is 
a combination of 2 components: $14.5 million of share capital and 78.5 
million of retained earnings.

The company’s cash position at the end of December 2016 was $16 million. 
Additionally, there is $8 million set aside in Anglec’s self insurance fund, 
making a total of 24 million.  Legal and professional costs for the period 
was $511,000.00.  

Net income for the year ending December 31, 2016 was $3.3 Million 
Dollars ($3.3M).

Earnings per share was $0.29 for the year ending December 31, 2016, a 
decrease of 9.3% over the previous year. 

 I trust that for the coming year, there will be a relentless effort at achieving 
outstanding goals and objectives, in particular the advancement of 
renewable, and the engagement of a Renewable Energy Consultant to pilot 
such an extensive and critical project.

Valued shareholders, it is my desire that the Board of Directors think 
independently as to be effective, prudent, and responsible as we work hand 
in hand to continue to develop such an essential entity.

Harold W. Ruan
Chairman, Anglec Board of Directors 
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Chairman’s Statement

Anglec, an electricity generation company with a transmission and 
distribution network worth millions of dollars in physical assets, has as 
its greatest asset its human resource. Anglec’s management and staff have 
over the years demonstrated competences in designing, building and 
running the company and making it into a world class institution worthy 
of commendation. The present management and staff continue to build on 
past achievements and are resolute in their desire to continue advancing all 
aspects of the company and to continue developing and growing themselves 
to meet all foreseeing and unforeseen challenges as the electricity generation 
and distribution industry continue to change.

One of the foremost anticipated changes is transitioning into and embracing 
renewable sources of energy at a sustainable pace that keeps up with the 
rapid technologically changing industry. It will always be challenging but 
not insurmountable. With careful planning and foresight, Anglec is poised 
to continue with this transition, not only with solar energy, but also with 
wind and other forms of renewables. Anglec will continue seeking ways 
to reduce our dependence on fossil fuels, though implementing various 
forms of renewable energy is very expensive in the initial stages and may 
not immediately result is savings to the customer. We will pursue this with 
the intention of reducing our fuel bill and ultimately pass the savings on to 
you the customer as soon as possible and do our part to assist in the fight 
to slow global warming. 

Anglec continues to modernize its distribution network to make it more 
reliable and efficient. The distribution grid is being developed into a smart-
grid with automatic high voltage switching and reclosures and advanced 
wireless meter reading and system monitoring and protection. Our 
constant upgrading includes raising the height of wires crossing the roads 
and strategically placing transformers off the main feeders to minimize area 
outages when servicing them. These changes will minimize the incidents of 
low voltage and breaks in power.

Our one megawatt solar farm is in operation and is the first step in advancing 
our plans toward a greater percentage of renewable energy.

Anglec is still a capital intensive company with its constant upgrades and 
improvements, slowly developing our vehicle fleet, and plans to carefully 
and methodically place our high voltage lines underground. These constant 
upgrades will bring about greater efficiency, resilience and reliability and 
will ultimately improve our financial bottom line.

The customer is our priority. We desire to make Anglec a company of which 
all stakeholders can be proud.  

Gareth Hodge
Chairman, Nov 2016 
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Principle Activities

The principle activities of the company are the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity.  

Non-Executive Directors

The Directors who served the company since the 13th Annual General Meeting held on 10th November 2016 to 
present are:

Mr. Harold Ruan
Ms. Dawnette Gumbs
Mr. Erville Hughes 
Mr. Gareth Hodge 
Mrs. Linette Sasso-Connor
Ms. Shinnette Connor 
Mr. Claude Smith
Mr. Wilfred Richardson
Mr. Kent Webster

Board and Committee Meetings

The Board has a set ordinary meeting once per month to conduct the business of the company.  The sub-committees of 
the Board are the Audit and Finance Committee, the Human Resources Committee and the Technical Committee.  
Directors attended additional Special Meetings of the Board as required. 

The Board carried out its responsibilities in accordance with the Companies Act and the By-Laws of the company. 

Summary of Financial Performance

For the fiscal year 2016, the company sold 90,999 KWh of electricity.  Total revenues were EC$ 65,693M an increase 
of 1 % compared to the previous year, mainly attributable to an increase in the Revenue driving factors.eg. New 
Connections and Late payment fees.

Net Income for the year totaled EC$3.337M as opposed to $3.724M. This represents a 11% drop as opposed to 2015, 
due in the main to a decrease in Other Income

The Company achieved Earnings per Share of EC$0.20, a decrease of 38% over 2015.

Hurricane Irma

On 6th September 2017, the Company endured one of the most catastrophic hurricanes to ever pass through the 
Caribbean region. The storm severely damaged all the Company’s main office buildings, along with damage to the 
vehicle garage, stores building, Corito Power Station, the grid and the Company’s 1-megawatt solar farm. Despite 
the damage sustained, through the commitment and dedication of its staff, Management, Board and key partners 
throughout the community, the team successfully restored the system within 100 days. Due to prudent management 
of resources over the years, on 6th September, the Company maintained a strong financial position. There were many 
factors that led to a successful restoration, but the most important factors were the excellent teamwork exhibited 
by the team and the comprehensive and well-planned approach to the restoration. As part of the restoration, the 
Company engaged the teams of the Caribbean Electric Utility Services Corporation (CARILEC) and from countries 
far north as Canada and as far south as Guyana. The Canadian support was provided through the auspices of the 
Governor’s Office via the Government of the United Kingdom.

Directors’ Report for the year ended December 31, 2016
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Below you will find the schedule of estimated hurricane Irma restoration costs. This schedule illustrates the estimated 
cost by category. 

Anguilla Electricity Company, LTD
Schedule of Grid Infrastructure Restoration Costs
As at December 31, 2017

Description 2017
Materials 12,200,000
Labor & Contract Labor Services 3,100,000
Rental and Contract Services 2,000,000
Travel, Room and Board 1,800,000
Repair and Construction Services 400,000
Professional and Consultancy Services 100,000
Other expenses 100,000
Total 19,700,000

The schedule shows the amounts which we incurred under the various categories, with a total grid expenditure 
approximated at EC$19,700,000, with the cost of materials accounting for over 50% of the costs. We do expect to 
have other grid infrastructure costs as we continue into the restoration.

We learnt a lot from Hurricane Irma. The storm gave many team members the opportunity to broaden their experience 
and enhance their skills. Despite the damage incurred at the Company’s solar farm, a comprehensive study will be 
prepared to put forward recommendations how to rebuild the plant more resilient than before. 

It is important to note that much of the costs outlined above will qualify as “Capital Expenditures” and thereby, will 
be depreciated under the Company’s depreciation policies. The Company continues to assess the full cost associated 
with the restoration of the grid and reconstruction or replacement of assets destroyed. Certain future expenditures 
such as those associated with the solar farm construction are still to be determined. However, it is expected that these 
costs will be recouped via the Company’s insurance claim, which now approximates EC$59,000,000. It is important 
to note that there is some risk that these claims may not be honored in full by the varied insurance carriers. 

Given the many assets damaged by the storm, a significant amount of the grid’s infrastructure costs, currently 
categorized as assets as at 31st December 2016 and 31st December 2017, may be written off. In addition, certain 
generation assets such as generating unit #10 [net book value as at 31st December 2017 and 2016 of EC$353,408 and 
EC$540,506, respectively] and the 1.1-MW Solar Farm [net book value as at 31st December 2017 of EC$7,399,948 
and EC$7,634,453, respectively], along with several other major assets such as poles, lines and transformers will be 
written off or undergo significant repairs in 2018.

Dividend Analysis

This dividend analysis is based upon the positive 2016 financial performance (earnings per share +$0.29) of the 
Anguilla Electricity Company, LTD. Despite the positive financial performance, the Company saw it fit to provide 
for a reduction in the dividend declared due to the recent passing of Hurricane Irma.

The destruction caused on the Company’s core assets, along with the larger Anguillan economy, and the investments 
made to restore the Company’s grid, following the passage of Hurricane Irma has had a considerable impact on 
the Company’s economic position. Despite the physical impact of the hurricane and the substantial cost of the 
restoration, it must be noted that the financial impact was heavily mitigated by anticipated insurance proceeds, 
deferral of capitalized costs (net of write-offs) and our ability to borrow at low rates through our developmental 
banking partner, Caribbean Development Bank (CDB).

Directors’ Report for the year ended December 31, 2016 (continued)
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Given the stronger than anticipated net income and future cash position of the Company, Management and the 
Board recommends to Shareholders that a reduced dividend in the amount of $0.05 per share or $581,806 to be 
issued, pursuant to section 52 of the Companies Act. 

Our future capital needs include the replacement of the PV Solar Plant, various IT equipment upgrades and 
additional generation sets. We took into account the uncertain economic conditions in which we were operating; all 
being legitimate reasons for us to be prudent and show restraint in our declared dividend.

Financial Analysis

Dividend Payout History

Projected Declared Historical Dividend
2017 2016 Average 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Net income $4,810,321 $3,365,737 $4,903,243 $3,687,511 $6,399,881 $5,119,905 $2,094,506 $7,214,411
Dividend per 
share $ - $0.05 $0.06 $0.08 $0.07 $0.07 $ - $0.10
Earnings per 
share $0.41 $0.29 $0.42 $0.32 $0.55 $0.44 $0.18 $0.62
Payout Ratio 0.0% 17.3% 15.2% 25.2% 12.7% 15.9% 0.0% 16.1%
# of shares o/s 11,636,147 11,636,147 11,636,147 11,636,147 11,636,147 11,636,147 11,636,147 11,636,147
$ Dividend 
Payout $ - $581,807 $744,713 $930,892 $814,530 $814,530 $ - $1,163,615

Cautionary Statement

Discussions in the Annual Report relating to the company’s expectations, objectives and outlook, inter alia, may 
constitute forward looking statements.  The actual position of the company may be different from expressions made 
or implied, depending on factors such as economic conditions affecting demand and supply, government regulations 
and taxation and acts of God which may significantly affect the operations of the company and for which the 
company has no control. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

Jeri Richardson Charles (Mrs.)
Corporate Secretary

Directors’ Report for the year ended December 31, 2016 (continued)
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Leading in the era of change
In today’s world, the question is not whether change is 
needed, it is how will change be achieved. For ANGLEC, 
the last 25 years has been about understanding how 
to effectively invest in the future of energy production 
in Anguilla while delivering results and adapting to 
economic shifts. Positioning ANGLEC as a leader locally 
and regionally mean doing more than just managing 
momentum. It is about taking calculated risks to reach 
beyond the present and into the future in transformative 
ways.

We challenged ourselves to be the model energy provider 
within the Caribbean, a lofty and ever shifting goal, yet 
each year we see potential to reach it in different aspects of 
our service offering.  In 2016, ANGLEC delivered despite 
continued global economic difficulty and skepticism. We 
took steps to ensure our coporate and social goals were 
met while making the required adjustments to minimize 
our overall risks. Our strategy is to continue to promote 
the addition of modern technology, training, progressive 
service and community outreach.

As one of Anguilla’s leading companies, ANGLEC is 
fortunate to have a team of talented influencers that work 
hard to support our company’s mission. We continue to 
promote innovation, accountability and community. We 
believe that this culture will lead to continued success of 
the Company.

In 2016, we accomplished several operational goals 
including the construction and commissioning of our 
1.1 megawatt (MW) solar farm, the continued roll-
out of our smart grid backbone (advanced metering 
infrastructure (AMI)), improved grid automation 
through the installation of automatic reclosers, continued 
our strategic grid reinforcement of the network to 
enhance metering and billing functionality and reduce 
losses through robust weekly revamps, completed various 
upgrades to our generation plant including increasing 
stack heights, enhancing the fire protection system, 
installing new transformers and enhancing automation 
at our generation plant.

Despite the ongoing changes surrounding utilities, 
ANGLEC is uniquely positioned to effectively service 
Anguilla. Along with the construction and commissioning  
of its 1.1MW solar farm in 2016, the Company has set 
a target to incorporate up to 4 MW of wind energy over 
the next 2-4 years. Work was completed on the solar farm 
in June 2016 and the official inauguration was held in 
September 2016. This was a big accomplishment for the 

Company and propelled it to become one of the leading 
renewable energy utilities in the region.

With each new year ANGLEC strives to become more 
innovative and transparent with our stakeholders. We 
have become more sophisticated in the way we do business 
– and the way we communicate with our customers. 
We are becoming more service-oriented, in addition to 
developing a broader product offering. We are creating 
and implementing new programs and technologies 
to provide our customers with more connectivity and 
convenience. 

Lighting the way through Civic Responsibility
At ANGLEC we believe it is our responsibility to 
provide value to our community in ways that extend 
beyond electricity. Each year we make generous charitable 
donations to worthy causes within our community and 
focus heavily on our designated annual philanthropic 
priorities. In 2016, our contributions covered areas of 
public health, youth development, education, small 
business development, sports, arts and cultural events.

The projects and causes we support provide tangible 
results for our community, from guaranteeing students in 
need reach educational milestones, to ensuring hundreds 
of local men get the needed testing and resources to 
prevent and treat prostate cancer. We are dedicated to 
community transformation which is why we take great 
care in choosing our philanthropic priorities through our 
Donations Committee each year. 

Lighting the Way for a Renewable Future 

With thoughtful planning and execution ANGLEC 
successfully combined the complementary strengths 
of traditional and renewable energy to provide a more 
responsible/sustainable energy service offering to 
Anguilla. On May 21, 2016, our long anticipated 1MW 
Solar Plant was completed. The Solar Plant operates on 
a grid-tied system and is connected to Anglec central bus 
bar system similar to ANGLEC’s existing generation 

Managerial Report
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portfolio. 

The Civil Works phase began in January with site 
preparation, drilling and piling, trenching, draining, 
fencing and foundations. The construction took place 
on a near impenetrable limestone rock bed that covers 
much of Anguilla’s terrain, our contractors had to 
employ an alternative method of drilling with highly 
specialized equipment using compressed air. Over the 
weeks that followed the initial preparations, contractors 
Uriel Renewables, Inc along with a locally employed 
contingent worked 6 days a week to complete the 
mechanical and electrical phases on schedule.  In total, 
4,452 solar photovoltaic (PV) panels were installed 
during the mechanical installation phase. The full plant 
houses rows of solar PV panels organized in accordance 
to their production levels. Each panel produces Direct 
Current (DC) power by absorbing sunlight that is later 
converted into Alternating Current (AC) electricity to 
be used in households throughout the country. 

This is a landmark development for Anguilla’s future as 
it enables ANGLEC to harness inexhaustible, pollution 
free energy that is also fiscally responsible, reduces 
ANGLEC’s dependences on conventional fossil fuel, 
reduces emission levels and maintenance requirements. 
It also positions ANGLEC as one of the leaders in 
renewable energy within the region. 

Other Generation Developments
In 2016, we implemented a new computer maintenance 
management software (CMMS) that helps to plan and 
schedule maintenance, keep a history of maintenance 
done and parts used on each component, keep track of 
retrofit and upgrades and produce reports for analysis. 
To improve our operational capacity and reliability, the 
Company commissioned two high speed sets at one 
megawatt (1MW) output each. These high-speed sets 
help to put quick power on the grid in the event of a 
generation failure due to their quick ramp-up rate along 
with supplying backup power during major overhauls 
and when major base load sets are unavailable. 

Grid modernization
Technology is a key driver of the ongoing transformation 
of the electric power industry – it changes what we can 

do, how we do it, and what it costs. Grid modernization 
is largely driven by the need to enhance resiliency, 
reliability, and security and to improve grid efficiency 
and optimization. ANGLEC has continued to 
modernize its grid in recent years with the continued 
rollout of its advanced metering infrastructure, and most 
recently, the procurement of automatic circuit reclosers. 
Automatic reclosers are key to automating the flow of 
electricity throughout the grid, minimizing the impact 
of outages, revenue losses and customer dissatisfaction. 
Following most power interruptions, the power can be 
restored to the customers almost immediately. With 
automatic reclosers, customers would see their power 
restored rapidly after a transient fault. In the case of 
permanent faults, the reclosers will maintain an open 
circuit allowing the normal manual outage management 
procedure to take over. 

Over the past year we experienced several major outages 
due to lightning storms. In Anguilla, grounding is often 
a challenge due to the limestone soil that have poor 
conductivity. To address these outage challenges, the 
Company committed to installing several grounding 
points on specific poles and transformers in areas of poor 
conductivity. These installations will include applying 
a special soil bonding compound around ground rods 
to improve conductivity. This along with several other 
infrastructure improvements will improve reliability and 
resiliency of the grid.

In 2016, we completed a 
major milestone towards 
the relocation of the 
existing Feeders out of 
the power station to a 
new distribution station, 
a T&D highlight of 
2016. The project was 

extensive and required a phased execution. This phase 
entailed installing the underground infrastructure, the 
excavation of 1,400 feet of trench and installation of 
ducts. The project is a stepping stone to moving our 
network underground; a critical initiative for the company 
that will relieve much needed space in the existing 
power station. This also prepares ANGLEC for the 
future undergrounding of its power lines. Underground 
power lines and brings much benefit in reliability as 
well as quicker restoration of power following major 
catastrophes such as hurricanes. 

In the coming years, ANGLEC intends to improve its 
grid automation efforts with the implementation of 
various distribution automation and outage management 
technologies and integrating existing and new systems. 
The Company plans to expand the rollout of AMI, 
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implement an outage management system and that 
combines geospatial information system, customer 
information system, and automated call handling system 
to prioritize and direct service restoration crews in the 
field.  

Other Transmission and Distribution Developments

As the provider of an essential service, it is critical that 
ANGLEC maintains the ability to effectively operate 
during outages. To ensure its Corito facilities maintain 
a state of readiness, a 40 KVA generator was installed 
to provide emergency power for the stores and garage 
buildings. During times of power outages, specifically 
during hurricane disaster restorations, these two facilities 
are critical to an effective recovery effort. Similarly, 
having an alternative water supply is key to ensuring the 
ANGLEC facilities maintain operational readiness. To 
reduce operational costs and readiness, the Company 
constructed a 30,000-gallon cistern to supply it Corito 
Transmission and Distribution facility.

Building On our Foundation

As we embrace change, we continue to build on our 
existing foundation within the department of Human 
Resources. The year 2016 was marked by a strong focus 
on employee development.  We engaged in training 
activities to transfer or enhance the knowledge, skills, 
competencies and attitudes through learning experiences. 
Our goal is to maintain levels of competence and respond 
to the demands of our changing circumstances, new 
approaches and technologies. Training focused on several 
areas to include: administration, technical, supervisory 
and management.  We continue to partner with several 
training providers to include; American Management 
Association, CARILEC, Anguilla Community College 
and others to meet our customized and standardized 
training needs. In 2016, we also developed our 

competency performance management system and all 
employees, supervisors and management were trained on 
the new system.

Inspiring and Empowering Change

In addition to training, we continue to empower our 
employees through our annual recognition program. 
Acknowledgment of our staff fosters a deep level of 
commitment and service to ANGLEC which has aided 
in retention over the years. The various categories of 
recognition included: customer service, performance, 
time management and community service.

2016 was a milestone year for ANGLEC as we celebrated 
25 years of service to Anguilla. During the celebration of 
our 25 years, we attended the Sunday morning Service 
at the Central Baptist Church which was followed by 
a Staff award ceremony and luncheon at the Anguilla 
Great House.  In addition to our service awards program, 
where we honored employees for their 20-25 years of 
loyal and dedicated service to ANGLEC. Other 2016 
staff events included ANGLEC’s annual-employee-
developmental workshop under the banner “Taking 
charge of my life” focusing on health, finance, and self-
motivation, while our Christmas party and picnic built 
personal camaraderie and fostered a spirit of togetherness 
within ANGLEC.

As we ensure that 
our people thrive 
during this changing 
e n v i r o n m e n t , 
we continue to 
engage in staff 
and organizational 

renewal-recruiting and retaining high quality staff. 
Continual learning, creating a safe and supportive 
company culture and analyzing the effectiveness of our 
employees benefit plans for improvement.  In 2017, one 
of the primary focuses will be job evaluation exercises and 
a compensation survey to ensure internal and external 
equity within ANGLEC.

We look forward to the continued development of the 
organization, product offerings and growth of our people 
in the coming year as we strive to become the model 
energy provider in the Caribbean.
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Operating Highlights

GROSS REVENUE (FROM 2015 TO 2016)

Gross revenues increased from EC$65.41 million in 2015 
to EC$65.69 million in 2016, or by EC$0.28 million, or 
0.4%. The increase in gross revenue was due to growth in 
kWh sales or units sold at 12.1%, offset by decreases in 
the fuel surcharge rates and related revenue during  2016. 

NET INCOME (FROM 2015 TO 2016)

Net income for the 2016 fiscal year was reported at EC$ 
3.37 million, as opposed to EC$ 3.69 million in 2015. 
This represents a decrease of EC$ 0.32 million, or -9.0%. 
The reduction in net income is due primarily to a settled 
legal claim in the amount of EC$ 2.2 million  [footnote 
34].

UNITS SOLD (FROM 2015 TO 2016)

We sold 9.83 million more kWh of electricity in 2016 
over 2015, a 12.1% increase. This was primarily due to 
the continued decrease in the cost of electricity and the 
correlating increase in demand and a major hotel coming 
on to the system during the year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (FROM 2015 TO 2016)

Earnings per share decreased from EC$ 0.32 in 2015 to 
EC$ 0.29 in 2016, a 10% reduction. This is primarily due 
to the legal settlement of E$ 2.2 million [footnote 34].
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PEAK DEMAND (FROM 2015 TO 2016)

Peak demand increased from 15.20 megawatts in 2015 to 
15.54 megawatts in 2016, an increase of .34 megawatts or 
+2.2%. The continued increase is due to the lower cost of 
electricity and increase in economic activity.

FUEL CONSUMED (FROM 2015 TO 2016)

The total fuel consumed in electricity production was 
5.44 million imperial gallons in 2016 as compared with 
5.06 million imperial gallons in 2015. This represents 
an increase of 380 thousand imperial gallons or +7.5 % 
increase. The increase in fuel consumption is due to the 
increase in sales/units generated.

UNITS GENERATED (FROM 2015 TO 2016)

Units generated increased from 94.26 million kWh 
in 2015 to 103.0 million kWh in 2016, an increase of 
8.75 million kWh, or a 9.3 % increase. This is due to the 
correlating increase in sales noted above.

FUEL   EFFICIENCY (FROM 2015 TO 2016)

Fuel efficiency increased from 18.54 kWh per imperial 
gallon in 2015 to 18.63 kWh per imperial gallon in 
2016. This represents a positive increase of 0.1 kWh per 
imperial gallon or 0.5%. 

Operating Highlights (continued)
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Financial Statements
31 December 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Anguilla Electricity Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Anguilla Electricity Company Limited (the “Company”), which comprise: 

 � the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016; 

 � the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and 

 � notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Company as at December 31, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Anguilla, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the financial statements of the Company as 
at and for the year ended December 31, 2015, before restatement, were audited by other auditors who expressed 
an unqualified opinion on these statements on September 20, 2016.  As part of our audit, we have audited the 
adjustments described in note 36 to the financial statements that were applied to restate the corresponding figures.  
In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

 Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

BDO LLC
P.O. Box 136
First Floor MAICO Headquarters
Cosley Drive
The Valley, AI-2640
Anguilla, BWI

Tel: 264-497-5500
Fax: 264-497-3755
e-Mail: claudel.romney@bdo-ec.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
To the Shareholders of Anguilla Electricity Company Limited  (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements  (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

 � Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 � Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

 � Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

 � Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
To the Shareholders of Anguilla Electricity Company Limited  (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements   (continued) 

 � If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 � Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

Chartered Accountants
The Valley, Anguilla
6th of June 2017

 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016  |  21

...embracing “green” energy



ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED 
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

Notes 2016

2015          
As Restated 

– Note 36 

2014            
As Restated – 

Note 36
Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment – net 7, 36 70,454,393 65,901,778 67,825,228
Net pension asset 24 243,575 301,490 509,656
Other assets 11,492 11,492 11,492
Investments 8, 31 2,173,610 - 2,033,953
Total non-current assets 72,883,070 66,214,760 70,380,329

Current assets
Prepayments and other current assets 11 888,165 1,195,952 452,305
Inventories – net 9 7,192,680 7,221,888 6,013,238
Trade and other receivables – net 10 12,704,132 12,586,176 17,469,557
Investments 8, 31 15,067,930 4,206,642 5,898,499
Cash and cash equivalents 12 8,841,691 21,744,486 13,600,545
Total current assets 44,694,598 46,955,144 43,434,144

Total Assets 117,577,668 113,169,904 113,814,473

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 13 14,536,147 14,536,147 14,536,147
Retained earnings 36 78,522,434 76,153,020 73,513,809
Total shareholders’ equity 93,058,581 90,689,167 88,049,956

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings – net of current portion 14 7,762,482 4,428,114 5,455,195
Contributions in aid of construction 15 3,849,901 3,494,294 3,639,338
Trade and other payables 16, 36 1,876,398 1,894,666 1,912,841
Total non-current liabilities 13,488,781 9,817,074 11,007,374

Current liabilities
Borrowings – current portion 14 3,988,780 3,956,198 9,123,043
Customers’ deposits 1,010,205 1,284,862 1,370,334
Trade and other payables 16, 36 6,031,321 7,422,603 4,263,766

Total current liabilities 11,030,306 12,663,663 14,757,143
Total Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilities 117,577,668 113,169,904 113,814,473

These financial statements were approved on behalf of the Board of Directors on June 6, 2017 by the following:

____________________ _______________________
Mr. Gareth Hodge Mr. Kent Webster
Chairman Vice Chairman 

The accompanying notes from pages 26 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

Notes 2016 

2015             
As Restated – 

Note 36  
Revenues

Energy sales 17 53,922,482 48,232,282
Surcharge 17 11,770,296 17,179,407

65,692,778 65,411,689
Cost of operations

Generation
Fuel (20,428,048) (18,419,587)
Fuel surcharge 17 (8,849,061) (14,549,004)

(29,277,109) (32,968,591)
Generation - other expenses                                                                        18, 36 (10,372,503) (9,833,150)

(39,649,612) (42,801,741)
Transmission and distribution expenses 19, 36 (8,752,310) (7,985,012)

(48,401,922) (50,786,753)

Gross operating income 17,290,856 14,624,936
Other income 20 2,010,469 2,395,901
Gross income 19,301,325 17,020,837

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses 21, 36 (14,677,578) (11,996,121)
Consumer services 22 (730,211) (760,847)

(15,407,789) (12,756,968)
Income from operations 3,893,536 4,263,869

Other expenses
Finance cost 25, 36 (527,799) (576,358)

Net income 36 3,365,737 3,687,511
Other comprehensive loss

Re-measurement of net pension asset 24 (65,431) (233,769)
Total comprehensive income 3,300,306 3,453,742

Additional disclosures:
Earnings per share 26 0.29 0.32
Dividends per share 27 0.08 0.07

The accompanying notes from pages 26 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

Notes Share capital

Retained 
earnings        

As Restated - 
Noted 36 Total

Balance as at 31 December 2014
As previously reported 14,536,147 73,773,253 88,309,400
Effect of recognition of finance lease 36 - (259,444) (259,444)
As restated 14,536,147 73,513,809 88,049,956

Net income for the year 36 - 3,687,511 3,687,511
Other comprehensive loss 24 - (233,769) (233,769)
Dividends paid 27 - (814,531) (814,531)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 36 14,536,147 76,153,020 90,689,167
Net income for the year - 3,365,737 3,365,737
Other comprehensive loss 24 - (65,431) (65,431)
Dividends paid 27 - (930,892) (930,892)
Balance as at 31 December 2016 14,536,147 78,522,434 93,058,581

         

The accompanying notes from pages 26 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

Notes 2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 3,365,737 3,687,511
Adjustments for:

Depreciation    7 6,367,272 5,982,422
Impairment losses 10 2,794,019 585,801
Revenue from contributions in aid of construction 15 (545,004) (524,512)
Increase in contributions in aid of construction 15 900,611 379,468
Interest expense - borrowings 14 223,308 344,933
Interest expense – finance lease 25 3,351 2,947
Interest income (125,191) (236,208)
Provision for slow moving/obsolete inventories 9 285,940 119,046
Inventory written-off 9 (27,433) -
Receivable written-off 10 (75,938) (2,231,171)
Re-measurement of net pension asset 24 (65,431) (233,769)
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (11,115) (7,906)

Operating income before working capital changes 13,090,126 7,868,562
(Increase)/decrease in:

Net pension asset 57,915 208,166
Other assets - (142,172)
Inventories (229,299) (1,327,696)
Trade and other receivables (2,874,097) 6,432,913
Prepayments and other current assets 307,787 (743,647)

Increase/(decrease) in:
Customers’ deposits (274,657) (85,472)
Trade and other payables (1,287,443) 3,171,831

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,649,537 15,382,485

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 7 (10,920,825) (4,289,413)
(Acquisition)/disposal of investment securities (13,034,898) 3,867,982
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 12,053 238,347
Interest received 163,251 332,046
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (23,780,419) 148,962

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings 14 (1,364,043) (9,122,130)
Finance lease payments (140,794) -
Interest paid (207,972) (379,049)
Dividends paid (930,892) (814,531)
Proceeds from borrowings 14 6,293,076 -
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 3,649,375 (10,315,710)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,340,712) 5,215,737
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft at 1 January  18,816,282 13,600,545
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft at 31 December 12 7,475,570 18,816,282

The accompanying notes from pages 26 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

1. Reporting entity

The Anguilla Electricity Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Anguilla on 11 January 1991 
under the Companies Act, I.R.S.A c1 and is governed by the Electricity Act, 1991, as amended, and operates in 
The Valley, Anguilla. The Company has an exclusive public supplier’s license to generate, transmit and distribute 
electricity on the island of Anguilla for a period of fifty years from 1 April 1991.

The Government of Anguilla controls 63% of the Company’s shares directly through its 40% shareholding and 
indirectly through the 23% shareholding in the Company by the Government- owned National Commercial Bank 
of Anguilla Limited.

The Company’s registered office address is Hannah-Waver House, The Valley, Anguilla, B.W.I.

2. Basis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs).

The financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 were authorized for issue by the Board 
of Directors on June 6, 2017.

b. Basis of measurement
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

c. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC Dollars), which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.  Except as otherwise indicated, all financial information presented in EC 
Dollars has been rounded to the nearest dollar.

d. Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are 
described in note 6 to the financial statements.
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ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

e. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

a) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2016

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except that the 
Company has adopted the following new and amended IFRSs and IFRIC (International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee) interpretations as of January 1, 2016:

�	     Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2010 – 2012) Cycle:
- IFRS 2 Share – based payments
- IFRS 3 Business Combinations, 
- IFRS 8 Operating Segments, 
- IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, 
- IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment, 
- IAS 38 Intangible Assets, 
- IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 

�	Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2011 – 2013 Cycle):
- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, 
- IFRS 3 Business Combinations, 
- IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, 
- IAS 40 Investment Property

�	 IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

None of the new and amendments to Standards that are effective during the year had a significant effect on 
the Company’s financial statements.

b) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations not yet effective and not yet adopted:

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet 
effective as at December 31, 2016 or relevant to the Company’s operations. These are as follows:
 �    IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, 1 January 2018
 �    IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 1 January 2018
 �    IFRS 16 Leases, 1 January 2019
 �    Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle 

 - IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, 1 January 2017
 - IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, 1 January 2018
 - Amendment to IAS 40 Investment Property, 1 January 2018  

The effects of IFRS 15 Revenues from Contracts with Customers, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 
16 Leases are still being assessed, as these new standards have an effect on the Company’s future financial 
statements.  
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ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Company to all periods presented in these 
financial statements.

(a) Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s func-
tional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of 
each financial year, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing as 
of the end of the financial year. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign cur-
rencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary 
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are 
included in profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary 
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the 
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognized directly in equity. For 
such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognized directly in equity.

(b) Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investment in certificates of deposit, trade and other receivables, 
cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, customer deposits and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value 
through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative 
financial instruments are measured as described below:

Investment in certificates of deposit
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity 
that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, and which are not designated at fair value 
through profit or loss or available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Any sale or 
reclassification of a significant amount of held-to-maturity investments not close to their maturity would result 
in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale, and prevent the Company from 
classifying securities as held-to-maturity for the current and the following two financial years.
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ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and 
subsequently measured at their amortized cost less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of 
trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all 
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. The amount of allowance is the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest 
rate. The amount of allowance is recognized in profit or loss. 

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and other highly liquid financial assets with 
maturities of less than three months that are purposed to meet short-term cash commitments and are not subject 
to significant risk of change in value.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of any transaction costs incurred. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortized cost.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future 
for goods and services received whether or not billed to the Company.

Other
Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at cost less any impairment losses.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have 
been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished (i.e. when the 
obligation is discharged or is cancelled or has expired).

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the 
items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalized borrowing costs. Purchased software 
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property and equipment. Gains and losses on disposal of an item 
of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying 
amount of property and equipment and are recognized net in the statement of profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs 
of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

iii. Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on the straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
part of an item of property and equipment. Leased buildings and improvements including leasehold lands 
are amortized over the shorter of the lease term and their estimated useful lives.  The estimated useful lives 
for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Leasehold lands 50 – 99 years
Buildings and improvements 40 years
Plant and machinery   10 - 20 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment   5 years
Motor vehicle  3 - 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

iv. Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress, which represents property and equipment under construction, is stated at cost and 
depreciated only when the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use. Upon completion, these 
properties are reclassified to their relevant property, plant and equipment account.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

v. Spare parts and servicing equipment
Minor spare parts and servicing equipment are typically carried as inventory and recognized in profit or loss as 
consumed. Major spare parts and stand-by equipment are carried as PPE when the entity expects to use them 
during more than one period or when they can be used only in connection with an item of PPE.

(d) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of comple-
tion and selling expenses. Allowance is made for obsolete and slow moving items.

(e) Impairment

i. Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that 
it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more 
events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is 
calculated by reference to its fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. An impairment 
is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

ii. Non-financial assets 
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, then the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount.  Impairment losses are recognized in the profit or loss.  
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Impairment (continued)

ii. Non-financial assets (continued)
In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date 
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is re-
versed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

(f ) Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are amounts received from customers towards the cost of providing 
services. These amounts are amortized over the estimated service lives of the related assets over the same period. 
Contributions received in respect of unfinished construction are amortized once the assets are placed in service.

(g) Share capital

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and 
share options are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Treasury shares
When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased by the Company, the amount of the consideration paid, 
including directly attributable cost is recognized as a deduction from equity. 

Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and presented as a deduction from total shareholders’ equity. 
When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, 
and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is transferred to/from retained earnings

(h) Revenue

i. Sale of energy
Revenue from the sale of electricity is recognized in profit or loss based on consumption recorded by 
monthly meter readings, with due adjustment made for unread consumption at yearend by apportioning 
the consumption of the following month.

In addition to the normal tariff rates charged for energy sales, a surcharge is calculated which is based on 
the difference between the fuel price at the base period and the average cost of fuel for the preceding 3 
months. Although assessed each month, the Company uses its discretion when considering how much to 
adjust the surcharge rate.  Where there are material changes in the surcharge rate, the Company applies 
the rate to units billed in the following month.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Revenue (continued)

ii. Late charges
A 2% late fee is charged on all customer trade receivable balances not paid after 15 days past the due date. 
The Company recognizes income from late charges when billed. Late charges are reported as other income 
(see Note 20).

iii. Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

iv. Connection upgrades and other services
Revenue from connection upgrades and other services is recognized in the statement of profit or loss when 
the service is rendered.

(i) Employee benefits

i. Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribu-
tions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obliga-
tions for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense 
in profit or loss when they are due.  Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a 
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.  This plan is for all non-management employees 
and all management employees hired after 2005.

ii. Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The 
Company operates a defined benefit pension plan for senior management hired before 2005. The plan is a 
multi-employer scheme with five contributing employers. The other participating companies are Montserrat 
Electricity Services Ltd., St. Lucia Mortgage Finance Company Ltd., St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited 
and St. Vincent Electricity Services Ltd. 

Multi-employer schemes pool the assets contributed by the various enterprises that are not under common 
control, and use the assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one enterprise on the basis that 
contributed and benefit levels are determined without regard to the identity of the enterprise that employs 
the employees concerned.  

The Company’s net obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount 
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; 
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and any unrecognized past service costs and the 
fair value of any plan assets are deducted.  The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the 
projected unit credit method.  
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3.   Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Employee benefits (continued)

ii. Defined benefit plan (continued)

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by 
employees is recognized in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the average period until the benefits become 
vested.  To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the net total of past 
service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to 
the plan.

  
(j) Finance cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are 
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or 
sale. Borrowing costs on general borrowings are capitalized by applying a capitalization rate to construction 
or development expenditures that are financed by general borrowings. Investment income earned on the 
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the 
period in which they are incurred using the effective interest method

(k) Earnings per share

Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted average number 
of issued ordinary shares.

(l) Dividends

Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are sanctioned by the shareholders.  Dividends 
per share have been calculated by dividing the dividend declared by the weighted average number of issued 
ordinary shares.

(m) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation.  Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
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3.   Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Leases

The Company leases lands, building and office spaces from related and non-related parties under finance and 
operating leases.
  
Finance lease
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. 

Assets held under finance leases are capitalized as property, plant and equipment of the Company at their 
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The 
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve 
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss

Operating lease
Leases where substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are retained by the lessors are classified 
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessors) are 
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Contingent rents are recognized as an expense in profit or loss when incurred.

(o) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to financial 
statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent 
assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(p) Subsequent events

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at reporting 
date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements when material.  Post year-end events that are not 
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

4. Determination of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both 
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.  Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure 
purposes based on the following methods.
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4. Determination of fair values (continued)

(a) Held-to-maturity investment securities
The fair value of held-to-maturity investment securities is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, 
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

(b) Trade and other receivables 
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at 
the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates carrying value due to its short term nature.

(d) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal 
and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.  Current liabilities are not 
discounted, since the present value of future cash flows is equal to its carrying amount.

When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the 
notes specific to that asset or liability.

Management believes that the effect of discounting those short-term financial assets and liabilities at market rate 
is immaterial as at year-end.

5. Financial risk management

(a) Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

 � credit risk
 � liquidity risk
 � market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital. Further 
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s 
risk management policies.
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5. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Overview (continued)
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the 
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims 
to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their 
roles and obligation.

The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies 
and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced 
by the Company. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit.  Internal Audit undertakes 
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are 
reported to the Board of Directors.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s investments 
in certificates of deposit and trade and other receivables.

Investment securities
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in fixed deposits with local banks.  
Management does not expect the related counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Trade and other receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each 
customer.  The demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry 
and country in which customers operate, has less influence on credit risk.  The Company establishes an 
allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other 
receivables and investment securities.  The main components of this allowance are collective losses based 
on number of days in receivable.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall 
due.  The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational 
expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the po-
tential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.  
In addition, the Company maintains a line of credit with a limit of EC$3.2 million with the National 
Commercial Bank of Anguilla Limited with an interest rate of 9.20% per annum. 
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5. Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Market risk

Currency risk
The Company’s exposure to currency risk is minimal as the exchange rate of the Eastern Caribbean dollar (EC$) 
to the United States dollar (US$) has been formally pegged at EC$2.70 = US$1.00.

Interest rate risk
Differences in contractual re-pricing or maturity dates and changes in interest rates may expose the Company to 
interest rate risk. The Company’s exposure and the interest rates on its financial liabilities are disclosed in Note 28 
to the financial statements.

(e) Fair value

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 
inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived 
from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar 
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or 
other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data. 

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where 
the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant 
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for 
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences 
between the instruments.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market 
prices or dealer price quotations. 

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models. Assumptions and inputs used 
in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads used in estimating discount 
rates, bond and equity prices and expected price volatilities and correlations. The objective of valuation techniques 
is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial instrument at the reporting date, 
which would have been determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.

The Company’s financial assets measured at fair value are disclosed in note 4. 
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5. Financial risk management (continued)

(f ) Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence 
and to sustain future development of the business.  The Board of Directors monitors both the demographic spread 
of shareholders, as well as the return on capital.

The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also recognized and the Company recognizes the need 
to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the 
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

 The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following ratios:   

2016 2015
Total debt 24,519,087 22,480,737
Shareholders’ equity 93,058,581 90,689,167
Debt-to-equity ratio (total debt/total equity) 26% 25%

2016 2015
Total debt 24,519,087 22,480,737
Total assets 117,577,668 113,169,904
Debt ratio (total debt/total assets) 21% 20%

2016 2015
Shareholders’ equity 93,058,581 90,689,167
Total assets 117,577,668 113,169,904
Equity ratio (total shareholders’ equity/total assets) 79% 80%

 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016  |  39

...embracing “green” energy



ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

6. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by 
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The following are the critical estimates and judgments used in 
applying accounting policies that have a significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year and/or in future periods:

a. Valuation of financial instruments
Financial instruments are valued on a basis described in note 3 (b) to the financial statements.  

b. Impairment of assets
Financial and non-financial assets are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in note 3 (e) to the financial 
statements.  See note 28 for the detailed breakdown of allowance for impairment losses on various financial and 
non-financial assets.

c. Estimation of unbilled sales and fuel charges
Unbilled sales and fuel charges are estimated using the actual meter reading in the following month as described 
in note 3 (h) (i) to the financial statements.

d. Measurement of defined benefit obligation
The Company’s defined benefit obligation is measured and calculated by a qualified actuary using the project unit 
credit method as described in note 3(i) (II) to the financial statements.

e. Determination of fair values
The fair values of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or 
disclosure purposes based on the methods described in note 5 to the financial statements. The carrying and fair 
values of financial assets and liabilities are presented in note 28 to the financial statements.
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7. Property, plant and equipment - net

 
As restated - 
Note 36 Free-

hold 
land 

   Lease-
hold land   

Note 33 
and 

Note 36 Buildings
Plant and 

machinery

Furniture, 
fittings and 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Capital 
work in 

progress

Total 

Cost
31 December 
2014 240,000 2,979,000 14,618,267 110,632,259 3,800,684 3,748,093 947,272 136,965,575
Additions - - - 1,322,785 265,202 733,915 1,967,511 4,289,413
Write-off/disposal - - - (306,826) - (90,056) - (396,882)
31 December 
2015 240,000 2,979,000 14,618,267 111,648,218 4,065,886 4,391,952 2,914,783 140,858,106
Additions - - 127,649 2,472,847 187,076 926,564 7,206,689 10,920,825
Transfer - - - 8,979,414 - - (8,979,414) -
Write-off/disposal - - - (4,298,836) - - - (4,298,836)
31 December 
2016 240,000 2,979,000 14,745,916 118,801,643 4,252,962 5,318,516 1,142,058 147,480,095

Accumulated depreciation
31 December 
2014 - 248,565 4,736,923 57,931,806 2,932,642 3,290,411 - 69,140,347
Depreciation - 32,912 366,183 5,125,192 227,619 230,516 - 5,982,422
Write-off/disposal - - - (5,114) (71,272) (90,055) - (166,441)
31 December 
2015 - 281,477 5,103,106 63,051,884 3,088,989 3,430,872 - 74,956,328
Depreciation - 32,911 366,448 5,440,491 233,474 293,948 - 6,367,272
Write-off/disposal - - - (4,297,898) - - - (4,297,898)
31 December 
2016 - 314,388 5,469,554 64,194,477 3,322,463 3,724,820 - 77,025,702

Net book values
31 December 
2016 240,000 2,664,612 9,276,362 54,607,166 930,499 1,593,696 1,142,058 70,454,393
31 December 

2015 – 
As restated 240,000 2,697,523 9,515,161 48,596,334 976,897 961,080 2,914,783 65,901,778

The Company is exposed to insurance risk on its transmission and distribution assets. These assets are not covered by 
external insurance. To manage this risk, the Company has established a “Self-insurance fund” (see Note 31) and will 
continue to set aside funds on an annual basis to increase the funds and mitigate the risk of damage from catastrophic 
events. At present, the fund balance may not be adequate to cover for possible catastrophic occurrence. To further 
mitigate the risk, the Company continues to upgrade the transmission and distribution system to withstand higher 
categories of wind velocities.
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7. Property, plant and equipment – net (continued)

Certain items of Property, plant and equipment were used to secure the loan from Caribbean Development Bank (See 
Note 14.1 and 14.2). Depreciation expense charged for the years ended is broken down as follows:
 

Notes 2016

2015              
As Restated – 

Note 36
Generation 18, 36 3,478,219 3,258,737
Transmission and distribution 19, 36 2,281,843 2,122,594
Administrative 21, 36 607,210 601,091

6,367,272 5,982,422

8. Investments
Details of the Company’s investments are as follows:

Deposits held-to-maturity Interest rates 2016              2015
Fixed deposits – Scotiabank (Anguilla) Limited .10% - 1.38% 15,067,930 1,622,862
Fixed deposits – National Commercial Bank Anguilla (NCBA) 

Ltd 3.425% 2,173,610 2,583,780
17,241,540 4,206,642

The following table shows the breakdown of restricted fixed deposits held at Scotiabank and NCBA which are used 
by the Company to satisfy the self-insurance reserve of the Company’s transmission and distribution system. The self-
insurance reserve is established to provide coverage for required expenditures in the event of natural disasters or similar 
catastrophic events.  Please see Note 31.

Deposits held-to-maturity Notes 2016              2015
Scotiabank (Anguilla) Limited 5,970,115 1,622,862
Fixed deposits – National Commercial Bank Anguilla (NCBA) Ltd 2,173,610 2,583,780

31 8,143,725 4,206,642

The maturity profile of the Company’s investments follows:

Notes 2016              2015
Due within one year 15,067,930 4,206,642
Due in two years 2,173,610 -

17,241,540 4,206,642
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9. Inventories - net

2016 2015
Generation parts and fuel 4,089,441 4,129,305
Transmission and distribution parts 3,592,532 3,301,591
Administration supplies 183,655 205,433

7,865,628 7,636,329
Less allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories (672,948) (414,441)

7,192,680 7,221,888

The movements of provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories are as follows:

2016 2015
Balance, 1 January 414,441 295,395
Provision for the year 285,940 119,046
Written off (27,433) -
Balance, 31 December 672,948 414,441

10. Trade and other receivables - net

2016 2015
Trade 13,716,435 9,440,932
Customer receivables under deferred payment plan 4,126,255 5,691,742
Accrued interest receivable 46,559 84,619
Other 314,714 150,633

18,203,963 15,367,926
Less allowance for credit losses (5,499,831) (2,781,750)

12,704,132 12,586,176

The Company has a significant trade receivables balance that is required to be subject to specific and/or collective 
impairment testing whenever there is objective evidence of impairment (see Note 28). The Company also offers 
deferred payment plans to customers with financial difficulties in settling their outstanding obligations. The plan is 
offered to customers interest free or with a low penalty rate and normally lasts for a maximum of twelve months except 
for Government of Anguilla. Details of receivables under the payment plans follow:

2016 2015
GOA Others Total GOA Others Total

Due within one year 3,106,614 289,661 3,396,275 2,532,451 132,659 2,665,110
Due more than one year 729,980 - 729,980 3,026,632 - 3,026,632

3,836,594 289,661 4,126,255 5,559,083 132,659 5,691,742
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10. Trade and other receivables - net  (continued)

As at year-end, the Government of Anguilla and its various statutory bodies owed the Company an amount of 
EC$8,017,394 (2015: EC$7,011,579) including the receivables under the payment plan detailed in the previous 
table. The settlement agreement for the payment plan, in place since 24 June 2014, with the approval of the Executive 
Council of Anguilla is still in effect.

The movements of allowance for credit losses are as follows:

Note 2016 2015
Balance, 1 January 2,781,750 4,427,120
Credit loss for the year 21 2,794,019 585,801
Written off (75,938) (2,231,171)
Balance, 31 December 5,499,831 2,781,750

11. Prepayments and other current assets

2016 2015
Advance deposits 653,663 975,985
Prepaid insurance 159,974 146,308
Other 74,528 73,659

888,165 1,195,952

12. Cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015
Cash in banks 8,838,391 21,742,236
Cash on hand 3,300 2,250

8,841,691 21,744,486

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates ranging from nil to 1% (2015: nil to 1%). Interest 
income earned from cash and cash equivalents amounted to EC$125,191 (EC$236,208 in 2015).

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are unrestricted and available for use in the operations.

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement:

Note 2016 2015
Cash 8,841,691 21,744,486
Bank overdraft 14 (1,366,121) (2,928,204)

7,475,570 18,816,282
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13. Share capital
 

2016 2015
Authorized: 30,000,000 30,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
17,036,147 ordinary shares at XCD $1.00 per share 17,036,147 17,036,147
Less: Treasury shares
5,400,000 ordinary shares at no par value (5,400,000) (5,400,000)

11,636,147 11,636,147
Add: Discount on treasury stock 2,900,000 2,900,000

14,536,147 14,536,147

The current percentage of ownership is as follows:

2016 2015

Government of Anguilla 40% 40%
Anguilla Social Security Board 16% 16%
*National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Limited 23% 23%
General Public 21% 21%

100% 100%

The members of the Board of Directors representing the Anguilla Social Security Board are appointed by the Govern-
ment of Anguilla. 

All classes of shares have been converted to one class of ordinary shares effective 3 June 2003. All shares are voting 
shares and carry equal rights. To date, the shares of the Company are not listed on any stock exchange.

*The National Bank of Anguilla Limited (NBA) and the Caribbean Commercial Bank (Anguilla) Limited (CCB) 
were dissolved on April 25, 2016. A single Government-owned National Commercial Bank of Anguilla (NCBA) was 
established on April 25, 2016 and assumed full interest in all shares held by the dissolved institutions. As of this date, 
the current percentage of ownership of National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Limited in the Company is 23%. 

14. Borrowings

Notes 2016 2015
Caribbean Development Bank – 6OR/ANG 14.1 6,293,077 -
Caribbean Development Bank – 3OR/ANL 14.2 4,092,064 5,456,108
National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Ltd. – bank overdraft 14.3 1,366,121 2,928,204

11,751,262 8,384,312
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14. Borrowings (continued)

This loan was made to the Company by Caribbean Development Bank to finance the Company’s 1 MV solar 
farm. The loan is payable in twenty (20) equal and consecutive quarterly principal instalments of US$117,050, 
commencing on January 2017 and will mature in Oct 2021 with variable interest rate at 2.97% per annum. 
This loan is secured by a pari passu legal charge along with Scotia Bank Anguilla Limited over the Company’s 
plant and equipment as well as the freehold property of the Company. This loan is also guaranteed by the 
Government of Anguilla. 

This loan (3OR/ANL) was made to the Company by Caribbean Development Bank in 2005 to finance the 
purchase of two generators. The total amount disbursed was US$6,089,000. This loan is payable in forty-eight 
(48) equal and consecutive quarterly principal instalments of US$126,855 with a variable interest rate at 
2.97% (2015: 3.43%) per annum that commenced in January 2008. This loan will mature in October 2019. 
This loan is secured by a pari passu legal charge along with Scotia Bank Anguilla Limited over the Company’s 
plant and equipment as well as the freehold property of the Company. This loan is also guaranteed by the 
Government of Anguilla. 

The Company maintains an overdraft facility with a limit of EC$3.2 million with the National Commercial 
Bank of Anguilla Ltd.  The facility carries an interest rate of 9.2% per annum.

The current and non-current portions of the borrowings are as follow:

2016 2015
Current
National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Ltd. – bank overdraft 1,366,121 2,928,204
Caribbean Development Bank – 6OR/ANG 1,258,615 -
Caribbean Development Bank – 3OR/ANL 1,364,044 1,027,994

3,988,780 3,956,198
Noncurrent
Caribbean Development Bank – 6OR/ANG 5,034,462 -
Caribbean Development Bank – 3OR/ANL 2,728,020 4,428,114

7,762,482 4,428,114
11,751,262 8,384,312

The total interest expense incurred on the aforementioned borrowings included in “Finance Cost” in the profit or loss 
is as follows:

 2016 2015
Caribbean Development Bank – 3OR/ANG 136,355 205,990
Caribbean Development Bank – 6OR/ANG 86,953 -
Scotiabank Anguilla Limited – Facility B - 133,794
Scotiabank Anguilla Limited – Facility A - 5,149

223,308 344,933

14.1

14.2

14.3
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14. Borrowings (continued)

Movements in the Caribbean Development Bank loans during the year are as follow:

2016 2015
Balance, 1 January 5,456,108 14,578,238
Additions 6,293,076 -
Repayments (1,364,043) (9,122,130)
Balance, 31 December 10,385,141 5,456,108

As of the year ended, the Company was not in default nor did it commit a breach of any terms or conditions of its loan 
accounts at any time during the year.

15. Contribution in aid of construction

Note 2016 2015
Balance, 1 January 3,494,294 3,639,338
Contributions received during the year 900,611 379,468
Amount charged to profit or loss 20 (545,004) (524,512)
Balance, 31 December 3,849,901 3,494,294

16. Trade and other payables

Notes 2016

2015              
As Restated – 

Note 36
Trade payables 3,304,373 2,519,174
Lease payable 33 2,180,645 2,318,088
Accrued expenses 1,739,949 3,947,330
Environmental levy payable 354,662 316,679
Accrued interest payable 62,123 46,787
Other payables 265,967 169,211

7,907,719 9,317,269

The current and non-current portions of the trade and other payables are as follows:

2016 2015
Current 6,031,321 7,422,603
Non-current 1,876,398 1,894,666

7,907,719 9,317,269
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17. Energy sales

2016 2015
Amounts billed during the year 54,029,280 48,303,792
Less: Unbilled revenue at beginning of the year (2,487,324) (2,558,834)

51,541,956 45,744,958
Add: Unbilled revenue at the end of the year 2,380,526 2,487,324

53,922,482 48,232,282

Pursuant to the Electricity (Rates and Charges) Regulations, the Company’s electricity tariff is subject to a surcharge 
of 1c per kWh for every 10c per gallon increase in the price of fuel oil over $3.64 per gallon. 

The Company utilizes the prescribed surcharge formula in establishing a ceiling for surcharge rate, whilst endeavour-
ing to adhere to a policy of maintaining relatively stable surcharge rates during periods of fuel price volatility.

As at December 31, 2016, the Company incurred total fuel surcharge expenses of EC$8,849,061 (2015: EC$14,549,004) 
of which it recovered a surcharge of EC$11,770,296 (2015: EC$17,179,407)

In addition to the surcharge as specified above, the Electricity (Rates and Charges) Regulations and Electricity Supply 
Regulations of the Electricity Act also states the following:

“In determining whether any or what variation of the tariff of rates and charges should be made, the Minister or 
the Arbitrator shall have regard to the principle that the Licensee’s revenues must be at least sufficient to enable the 
Licensee- 

a. to meet all expenses reasonably incurred in the production of such revenues, including (without limitation) 
depreciation of assets, provision for bad debts and interest on indebtedness; and

b. to repay its indebtedness; and 

c. to provide for the cost of replacement of its capital assets; and 

d. to provide a reasonable proportion of the capital costs of expanding its undertaking to meet any demand for an 
increased service to the public; and

e. to provide an annual return on its Ordinary Shareholders’ Equity at a rate which is not less than the average 
twelve-month deposit rate paid by commercial banks in Anguilla plus three per cent: PROVIDED THAT such 
return shall be at a rate not less than twelve percent per annum.  
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18. Generation – other expenses

Notes 2016

2015              
As Restated – 

Note 36
Depreciation 7, 36 3,478,219 3,258,737
Staff costs 23 3,168,606 2,928,675
Repairs and maintenance 2,595,370 2,668,625
Insurance 895,881 873,203
Supplies and other expenses 234,427 103,910

10,372,503 9,833,150

19. Transmission and distribution expenses

Notes 2016

2015              
As Restated – 

Note 36
Staff costs 23 3,840,275 3,942,312
Depreciation 7, 36 2,281,843 2,122,594
Repairs and maintenance 1,622,234 1,082,687
Supplies and other expenses 689,903 584,429
Insurance 318,055 252,990

8,752,310 7,985,012

20. Other income

Notes 2016 2015
Late charges 603,784 889,648
Connection upgrades and other services 548,472 508,218
Revenue from contribution in aid of construction 15 545,004 524,512
Interest income 12 125,191 236,208
Reconnection fees 108,390 152,350
Rental and relocation of poles 68,513 77,059
Gain on sale of motor vehicles 7 11,115 7,906

2,010,469 2,395,901
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21. Administrative expenses

  

Notes 2016

2015              
As Restated – 

Note 36
Staff costs 23 3,658,319 3,321,289
Credit loss 10 2,794,019 585,801
Office expenses 1,718,830 1,683,163
Litigation settlement 34 2,200,000 3,338,200
Business license fee 29 750,000 300,000
Depreciation 7, 36 607,210 601,091
Legal fees 34 590,786 135,016
General 532,166 781,768
Gross revenue tax 425,176 -
Directors’ fees and expenses 451,168 447,492
Leases 33 279,152 253,077
Audit fees 215,089 156,050
Insurance 222,365 198,364
Consultancy fees 203,781 172,384
Eastern Caribbean Securities Regulatory Commission 29,517 22,426

14,677,578 11,996,121

22. Consumer services

Note 2016 2015
Staff costs 23 406,962 413,044
Temporary and contract services 199,139 152,653
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 30,560 113,292
Other 93,550 81,858

730,211 760,847

23. Staff costs

Notes 2016 2015
Transmission and distribution 19 3,840,275 3,942,312
Administrative 21 3,658,319 3,321,289
Generation 18 3,168,606 2,928,675
Consumer services 22 406,962 413,044

11,074,162 10,605,320
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23. Staff costs (continued)

Details of staff costs per nature of expenses are as follow:

Notes 2016 2015
Salaries, wages and allowances 8,362,000 8,128,722
Overtime 779,249 609,746
Pension expense – defined contribution 24 316,717 278,001
Pension expense – defined benefit 24 110,392 115,537
Training 430,538 485,751
Social security 346,723 330,719
Interim stabilization levy 252,522 238,909
Other 476,021 417,935

11,074,162 10,605,320

24. Pension expenses

The Company has two pension plans for its employees.

a. Defined contribution plan
The Company uses a defined contribution plan for its non-management employees and all management employees 
hired after 2005. This plan is handled and administered by Zurich International. Total contributions made by the 
Company amounted to EC$316,717 and EC$278,001 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

 
b. Defined benefit plan

For senior management hired before 2005, the Company has a defined benefit plan and contributes to the 
multiemployer plan named CDC Caribbean Pension Scheme which is administered by Sagicor Life Inc. This 
pension plan is closed to new participants.

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2016 2015
Present value of obligations (3,766,280) (3,519,000)
Fair value of plan assets 4,009,855 3,820,490
Net pension asset 243,575 301,490

The movements in the present value of obligations for the defined plan are shown below:
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24. Pension expenses (continued)

2016 2015
Present value of obligations, 1 January 3,519,000 3,242,509
Interest cost 272,124 251,048
Current service cost 127,838 122,759
Benefits paid (37,017) (35,939)
Actuarial gain on obligation (115,665) (61,377)
Present value of obligations, 31 December 3,766,280 3,519,000

The movements in the fair value of plan assets for the defined benefit plan are shown below:

2016 2015
Fair value of plan assets, 1 January 3,820,490 3,752,165
Expected return on plan assets 289,570 284,379
Contributions 117,908 115,033
Benefits paid (37,017) (35,939)
Actuarial loss on plan assets (181,096) (295,148)
Fair value of plan assets, 31 December 4,009,855 3,820,490

The plan assets as at the reporting date consist of the following:

2016 2015
Equities 30% 30%
Other – Bonds and fixed income securities 70% 70%

Pension expense recognized in profit or loss is shown below:

2016 2015
Current service cost 127,838 122,759
Interest cost 272,124 277,157
Expected return on plan assets (289,570) (284,379)
Pension expense defined benefit plan 110,392 115,537

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

2016 2015
Discount rate 7.50% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50%
Salary increase rates 6.50% 7.00%
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24. Pension expenses (continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal assumption is:

2016 2015
Discount rate – 1% 660,972 709,892
Discount rate + 1% (505,449) (551,178)
Salary increase – 0.5% (67,547) (72,743)
Salary increase + 0.5% 76,558 82,447

The historical information of the amount as at reporting date is as follows:

2016 2015
Present value of obligation 3,766,280 3,519,000
Fair value of plan assets (4,009,855) (3,820,490)
Surplus (243,575) (301,490)
Experience adjustments arising from plan liabilities 115,665 61,377
Experience adjustments arising from plan assets (181,096) (295,146)

The actuarial loss recognized in the other comprehensive income is as follows:

2016 2015
Gain from experience (115,665) (61,377)
Expected return on plan assets 289,570 284,379
Actual return on plan assets (108,474) 10,767
Loss from experience 65,431 233,769

The Company expects to pay EC$117,910 in contributions to the defined benefit plan in 2017 plus any increases in 
the salaries of qualified employees which are yet to be determined. 

25. Finance costs

Notes 2016

2015              
As Restated – 

Note 36
Interest expense – borrowings 14 223,308 344,933
Charges and commissions 435,431 348,318
Gain on foreign exchange (134,291) (119,840)
Interest expense – finance lease 3,351 2,947

527,799 576,358
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26. Earnings per share

The calculations of basic earnings per share as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were based on the net income for the 
year and the total number of capital shares issued and outstanding as at reporting date calculated as follows:

2016

2015              
As Restated – 

Note 36
Net income for the year 3,365,737 3,687,511
Total number of shares issued as at 31 December 11,636,147 11,636,147
Earnings per share 0.29 0.32

27. Dividends

Dividend of EC$0.08 (2015: EC$.07) per share was declared by the Board of Directors on 18 July 2016 and sanc-
tioned by the shareholders during the last annual general meeting.

28. Financial instruments

i. Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit 
risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Notes 2016 2015
Investments 8 17,241,540 4,206,642
Trade and other receivables – net 10 12,704,132 12,586,176
Cash in bank 7,472,270 18,814,032

37,417,942 35,606,850

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables at the reporting date by type of customer is 
presented below:

2016 2015
Government 8,017,394 7,011,579
Hospitality 4,351,764 4,815,456
Residential 2,922,701 1,794,604
Commercial 2,565,089 1,643,438
Other 347,015 102,849

18,203,963 15,367,926
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28. Financial instruments (continued)

i. Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk (continued)

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired is as follows:

2016 2015
Unimpaired trade receivables
Group 1 – Customers with no defaults 6,489,717 6,927,314
Group 2 – Customers with some defaults but full recovery 4,459,314 4,685,672
Group 3 – Customers with some defaults, partial recovery 1,755,101 973,190
Total unimpaired trade receivables 12,704,132 12,586,176

 Notes 2016 2015
Cash in bank and investments

Cash in bank 12 8,838,391 21,742,236
Investments in certificates of deposit 8 17,241,540 4,206,642

26,079,931 25,948,878

Cash comprise of cash in banks and carry little or no financial risk. The Company’s investments are comprised 
of certificate of deposits with the National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Limited and Scotiabank (Anguilla) 
Limited. 

Deposits with National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Limited

On August 12, 2013, the National Bank Anguilla of Limited (NBA) and Caribbean Commercial Bank (Anguilla) 
Limited (CCB) were placed in Conservatorship. This Conservatorship ended on April 22, 2016. The conclusion 
of the Conservatorship is a consequential effect of the passing of the Bank Resolution Obligations Act, 2016 
(the “Act”) by the Government of Anguilla on March 30, 2016. The passing of the Act resulted in the transfer of 
the Company’s deposits to the newly established bridge bank: The National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Ltd 
(“NCBA”).  Thus, the Company believes that its deposits with the new bridge bank are secured and not impaired.

Impairment losses
The Company has a significant trade receivables balance that is required to be subject to specific and/or collective 
impairment testing whenever there is objective evidence of impairment.
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28. Financial instruments (continued)

i. Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk (continued)

Impairment losses (continued)

The Company recognized allowance for credit loss as follows:

 2016 2015
Inactive accounts 100% 100%
Government accounts 25% - 100% 10% - 100%
Accounts with payment agreements 10% - 50% 10% - 50%
General accounts 15% - 75% 15% - 75%

Based on the aging report as of 31 December, the past due trade and other receivables were provided for as follows:

2016 2015
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment

Current 7,954,091 745,785 8,268,663 856,794
Past due 30-60 1,696,481 387,259 467,918 159,303
Past due 60-90 1,054,260 344,848 259,802 134,183
Over 90 7,499,131 4,021,939 6,371,543 1,631,470
Total 18,203,963 5,499,831 15,367,926 2,781,750

The movement in allowance for doubtful accounts in respect of trade receivables during the year is shown in Note 
10.

ii. Liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments:

Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Under 1 
year 1-2 years 2-5 years

More than 5 
years

31 December 2016
Bank overdraft 1,366,121 1,366,121 1,366,121 - - -
Borrowings 10,385,141 11,109,339 2,918,259 2,838,183 5,352,897 -
Customers deposits 1,010,205 1,010,205 1,010,205 - - -
Trade and other payables 7,907,719 9,648,643 6,032,620 21,269 120,260 3,474,494

20,669,186 23,134,308 11,327,205 2,859,452 5,473,157 3,474,494

31 December 2015
Bank overdraft 2,928,204 2,928,204 2,928,204 - - -
Borrowings 5,456,108 5,853,863 1,533.646 1,486,859 2,833,358 -
Customers deposits 1,284,862 1,284,862 1,284,862 - - -
Trade and other payables 9,317,269 11,061,544 7,424,252 21,269 120,260 3,495,763

18,986,443 21,128,473 13,170,964 1,508,128 2,953,618 3,495,763
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28. Financial instruments (continued)

iii. Market risk 
Interest rate risk

2016 2015

Interest Interest rate
Carrying 

amount Interest rate
Carrying 

amount
Cash in bank Fixed 0%-1.0% 8,838,391 0%-1.0% 21,742,236
Investments Fixed 0.10%-3.425% 17,241,540 0.25%-3.425% 4,206,642
Overdraft Fixed 9.20% 1,366,121 9.20% 2,928,204
Leases Fixed 0.74% - 2.29% 2,180,645 0.74% - 2.29% 2,318,088
Borrowings Variable 2.97%-3.43% 10,385,141 2.97%-3.43% 5,456,108

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable interest rate. The Company has borrowings 
carrying interest rates based on LIBOR. The cash flow interest rate risk sensitivity which is consistent with prior 
year is shown below in case there is a 10% increase/decrease in interest rate.

2016 2015
At required 

rate
+10% 

increase
-10% 

increase
At required 

rate
+10% 

increase
-10% 

increase
CDB – 6OR/ANG 172,886 190,175 155,598 - - -
CDB – 3OR/ANG 122,713 134,984 110,441 153,131 168,444 152,642

295,599 325,159 266,039 153,131 168,444 152,642

Price risk
Price risk is the possibility that equity prices will fluctuate affecting the fair value of equity investments. The 
Company is not exposed to price risk as it does not have equity investments as at the reporting date.

iv. Fair value
The table below sets out fair values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting date.

2016 2015
Carrying 

amount Fair values
Carrying 

amount Fair values
Investments 17,241,540 17,064,925 4,206,642 4,287,716
Trade and other receivables 12,704,132 12,704,132 12,586,176 12,586,176
Cash 8,838,391 8,838,391 21,742,236 21,742,236

38,784,063 38,607,448 38,535,054 38,616,128
Overdraft 1,366,121 1,366,121 2,928,204 2,928,204
Borrowings 10,385,141 10,580,099 5,456,108 5,456,108
Consumers’ deposits 1,010,205 1,010,205 1,284,862 1,284,862
Trade and other payables 7,907,719 6,862,544 9,317,269 8,264,984

20,669,186 19,818,969 18,986,443 17,934,158
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28. Financial instruments (continued)

iv. Fair value
The basis for the determination of the fair values is discussed in detail in Note 5 to the financial statements.

29. Related party transactions

Identification of related party
A party is related to the Company if:

(i) Directly or indirectly the party:
 � Controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Company;
 � Has interest in the Company that gives it significant influence over the Company; or;
 � Has joint control over the Company.

(ii) The party is a member of the key management personnel of the Company. These include the Chief Executive 
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Systems Control Engineer, the Network Operations Engineer, the 
Information Technology Manager, the Human Resource Manager, the Transmission and Distribution 
Superintendent, the Accountant and the Corporate Secretary.

(iii) The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (ii)
(iv) The party is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Company or any entity that is a 

related party of the Company.

Related party transactions and balances

The Company has entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business as at 31 
December 2016 and 2015. These transactions were conducted at market rates, or commercial terms and conditions.  
Details are as follows:

i. Key management personnel and directors

 2016 2015
Short-term benefits to executive officers 2,342,136 2,250,347
Director fees and related activities 451,168 447,492

ii. Government of Anguilla (GOA) – significant shareholder

Balance sheet 2016 2015
Accounts receivable 8,017,394 7,011,579
Allowance for credit losses (3,384,693) (1,208,170)
Lease payable 33 (2,180,645) (2,318,088)
Environmental levy payable (354,662) (316,679)
Interim stabilization levy payable (48,980) (45,394)
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29. Related party transactions (continued)

Related party transactions and balances (continued)

ii. Government of Anguilla (GOA) – significant shareholder (continued)

Income statement 2016 2015
Revenues from GOA 9,454,725 8,353,440
Credit loss for the year 2,176,523 32,148
License fee 750,000 300,000
Import duties and other fees and services 6,308,710 5,630,523
Gross revenue tax 425,176 -

Others 2016 2015
Environmental levy 4,083,459 4,224,029
Credit loss written-off - -
Dividends paid 372,357 325,812

a. The Government of Anguilla imposed an environmental levy of 7% of revenues, excluding Government’s 
usage, on the Company effective 15 April 2010.  This is being passed on directly to the customer.

b. License fee increased by 150% during the year from EC$300,000 to EC$750,000.

c. In accordance with the Electricity Supply (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, the Company shall pay to the 
Government a gross revenue tax which is equivalent to a variable portion in the amount of .65% of the audited 
gross revenue of the Company from the previous year’s audited financial statements and payable in the last 
quarter in the year in which it is due.

d. The Government of Anguilla has guaranteed the loans borrowed by the Company from Caribbean 
Development Bank (see Note 14).

e. The Company leases various crown lands of the Government of Anguilla for terms ranging from 50 to 99 
years.  (see Note 33)

iii. Anguilla Social Security Board – significant shareholder

The Company pays social security contributions for its employees to Anguilla Social Security Board in compliance 
with the Anguilla Social Security Act. Total employer and employee contributions incurred during the year 
amounted to EC$693,446 (2015: EC$661,438) of which EC$66,980 (2015: EC$59,152) were outstanding at 31 
December 2016.

 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016  |  59

...embracing “green” energy



ANGUILLA ELECTRICITY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars (EC$))

29. Related party transactions (continued)

Related party transactions and balances (continued)

iv. National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Limited – significant shareholder

The Company maintains a savings deposit and has an overdraft facility with a limit of EC$3.2 million with the 
National Commercial Bank of Anguilla Limited, with an interest rate of 9.2% per annum, which is currently in 
use.  Details are as follow:

2016 2015
Current account 2,297,375 1,519,984
Bank overdraft (1,366,121) (2,928,204)

30. Commitments

On 1 July 2016, the Company entered into a gas oil supply contract with Delta Petroleum Limited commencing on 
that day until 30 June 2019.

31. Self-insurance fund

The Company experienced difficulty in obtaining adequate and reasonably priced commercial insurance coverage 
primarily on the Transmission and Distribution assets in prior years. In line with this, the Board of Directors had 
therefore given approval in 2006 for the establishment of a Self-insurance fund to provide coverage for its assets in 
the event of natural disasters or similar catastrophic events. The relevant enabling legislative process was completed 
during 2006 and the Company set aside an amount of EC$685,714 in the same year. Consequently, the Company 
ceased commercial insurance cover of its Transmission and Distribution assets and will place an appropriate amount 
into the Fund on an annual basis.

The changes in the self-insurance fund balance are as follows:

2016 2015
Balance at beginning of the year 4,206,642 4,064,470
Additional fund for the year 3,937,083 1,622,862
Withdrawals for the year - (1,480,690)
Balance at end of the year 8,143,725 4,206,642

This fund is placed in a term deposit with local banks and is restricted to provide coverage for required expenditures 
in the event of natural disasters or similar catastrophic events. However, as per the Company’s internal assessment 
the current level of the fund is very low as compared to the 60% or EC$24,000,000 current risk exposure.  The 
Company however will continue to aggressively fund its self-insurance program until it reaches the required 
coverage for its risk exposure.
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32. Alternative energy sources

The Company continued its drive towards the transition to renewable energy. In 2016, the Company achieved the 
successful construction and commissioning of a 1 megawatt solar photo voltaic farm. Given the relatively small size 
of the electrical grid system and the base load capacity in Anguilla, the Company is approaching its transition to 
renewable energy and the vulnerability to supply instability this presents with a measure of caution. The Company 
anticipates further investments in battery storage and wind energy generation in the future.

33. Leases

Operating lease

a. Main Building
On 6 November, 2009, the Company renewed its lease with the lessee for another two years with an option to 
renew for another year. Monthly rent is EC$8,500 commencing November 2009. The lease contract had not 
been renewed since. However, the Company is paying based on the old terms of the contract. Total rent expense 
in 2016 included in “administrative expenses” in the statement of comprehensive income is EC$102,000 (2015: 
EC$102,000). The lease agreement does not provide for any escalation of rent during the lease term.

b. Additional Office Space
On 23 December 2013, the Company entered into a two-year lease agreement for additional office space. 
Monthly rent is EC$7,661 commencing January 2014. The lease contract was not renewed in 2016. However, the 
Company is paying based on the old terms of the contract during the year. Total rent expense in 2016 included 
in “administrative expenses” in the statement of comprehensive income is EC$91,936 (2015: EC$91,936). The 
lease agreement does not provide for any escalation of rent during the lease term.

Finance lease

a. Crown Land

i. Solar power plant
On 19 of February 2016, the Company signed a ninety-nine year crown land lease agreement with the 
Government of Anguilla for the solar energy farm commencing on the 1st day of July 2013 and expiring on 
the 30th day of June 2112.

The annual sum of EC$13,441 will be paid to the lessor for the first 5 years, Thereafter, for the following 
five years of the lease, the rent will increase annually by five percent (5%). Total expected lease payments 
including the initial direct cost amounted to EC$2,221,499.  The total expected payment as mentioned in 
the preceding paragraph approximates the fair value of the land subject to lease.  Also, the rent shall be 
continually reviewed at the end of every fifth year of the lease. In no event shall the reviewed rent be less 
than the rent payable prior to the review.
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33. Leases (continued)

Finance lease (continued)

a. Crown Land (continued)

ii. Administration Building

On 19 April 2017 the Company signed a ninety-nine year crown land lease agreement with the Government 
of Anguilla for the purpose of the constructing the Company’s administrative building.  The lease has an 
effective commencement date on June 6, 2002 and will expire on June 5, 2102.

The Company agreed to pay the total sum of EC$715,062 which is equivalent to the total fair value of 
the land plus incremental stamp duty taxes at the beginning of the lease plus an annual peppercorn rent of 
EC$100.00 for ninety-nine (99) years. 

iii. Corito Power Plant

The Company occupies several parcels of Crown land as part of the Corito Power Plant and Corito 
Substation with proposed lease terms from the Government of Anguilla. Despite various attempt to secure 
a lease for the occupied parcels over several years, the Company was unsuccessful in doing so. The proposed 
annual cash payment for these leases is expected to be EC$13,090 and EC$1,271,496 over the lease term of 
99 years including initial direct costs. The total expected payment as mentioned in the preceding paragraph 
approximates the fair value of the land subject to lease.

iv. West End Transmission

The Company occupies Crown land housing its West End Substation with proposed lease terms from 
the Government of Anguilla. Despite various attempts to secure a lease for the occupied parcels over the 
years, the Company was not successful in doing so.  The annual sum of EC$8,000 is expected to be paid 
to the lessor for the first 5 years, thereafter, for the following five years of the lease, the rent will increase 
annually by five percent (5%). Total expected lease payments including the initial direct cost amounted to 
EC$519,245.  The total expected payment as mentioned in the preceding paragraph approximates the fair 
value of the land subject to lease.  

Details of the recognized finance lease assets and liabilities based on the present value of the minimum lease 
payment using the interest rate implicit in the lease follow:

2016
Total land 

value Paid to date
Finance charge 

to date
Lease payable 

balance
Solar power plant 1,108,546 (100,471) 1,702 1,009,777
Administration building 721,539 (715,061) 91 6,569
Corito power plant 863,966 - 5,854 869,820
West end transmission 284,949 - 9,530 294,479

2,979,000 (815,532) 17,177 2,180,645
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33. Leases (continued)

Finance lease (continued)

2015
Total land 

value Paid to date Finance charge
Lease payable 

balance
Solar power plant 1,108,546 - 1,026 1,109,572
Administration building 721,539 (674,738) 78 46,879
Corito power plant 863,966 - 4,891 868,857
West end transmission 284,949 - 7,831 292,780

2,979,000 (674,738) 13,826 2,318,088
 
Future minimum lease payments

2016 2015
Past due 284,277 263,008
Less than one year 21,269 162,063
Between one and five years 141,530 141,530
More than five years 3,474,493 3,495,762

3,921,569 4,062,363

34. Litigation settlement

a. Employees

Several employees were terminated in line with the Fair Labour Standards Act, R.S.A F15 7(1)(d) on 07 October 
2013 and 10 January 2014. In response to the termination, the employees took the matter to the Labour Tribunal:

During the year the following settlements were made:

i. Settlement in the sum of EC$650,000 payable by installments through the period from June 2016 through 
September 2016.  This settlement was recorded as an expense in the 2015 financial statements as shown in 
Note 21.    

ii. Settlement in the sum of EC$2,200,000 payable by installments through the period from November 2016 
through February 2017.  This settlement was recorded as an expense in the 2016 financial statements as shown 
in Note 21.

b. Customer 

Anguilla Development Corporation filed a claim in 2015 against the Company for the disruption of service to 
their reverse osmosis plant. The Board of Directors settled this matter on the 18 July, 2016 for EC$ 2,688,200. This 
settlement charge was recorded in the 2015 financial statements as shown in Note 21.
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34. Litigation settlement (continued)

Total litigation costs and other professional fees incurred in these litigation settlements amounted to EC$533,910.

35. Contingencies

Customer

It was brought to the Company’s attention during the 2014 financial year that the Water Corporation of Anguilla, 
a statutory body of the Government of Anguilla, was illegally obtaining electricity from ANGLEC for a period of 
about three (3) years. The Company’s investigation confirmed the illegal connection. The matter was also brought to 
the attention of the Board of Directors of the Company and the Water Corporation as well as the Royal Anguilla 
Police Force. The Company has estimated the revenue loss of this situation to be approximately EC$3,510,657. 
The Company has not recognized this amount, pending negotiation and determination of the recoverable amount. 
There were no further developments between the Company and the Water Corporation of Anguilla regarding 
payments and settlement of this matter during 2016.

Employee

The Company has been taken before the Labour Tribunal by a terminated employee who is contesting the fairness 
of his dismissal under the Labour Standards Act, R.S.A. A F15 7(1)(d).  The decision of the Labour Tribunal is 
pending as at audit date.

36. Restatements

The comparative figures for 2015 and 2014 financial statements were restated to reflect the recognition of the right-
of-use asset and lease liability under a finance lease.  This adjustment resulted from the Company’s oversight in the 
recognition of the use of government lands that should be subject to a lease agreement as discussed in Note 33.

The effect of the above restatement to the statement of profit or loss and total comprehensive income follows:

2015
Statement of 
Profit or loss

Total comprehensive 
income

As previously stated 3,723,370 3,489,601
Effect of the finance lease recognition
Amortization of leasehold land (32,912) (32,912)
Interest expense – finance lease (2,947) (2,947)
As restated 3,687,511 3,453,742
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36. Restatements (continued)

The effect of the above restatement to the specific statement of profit or loss accounts follows:

As previously reported As restated
2015 Sub-balance Total balance Sub-balance Total balance

Depreciation
Generation – other expenses 3,241,841 9,816,254 3,258,737 9,833,150
Transmission and distribution 2,113,867 7,976,285 2,122,594 7,985,012
Administrative 593,802 11,988,832 601,091 11,996,121

5,949,510 29,781,371 5,982,422 29,814,283
Finance costs
Interest expense – lease - 573,411 2,947 576,358

The effect of the above restatement to the beginning balance of the retained earnings for the years ended December 
31, 2015 and 2014 follows:

2015 2014
As previously stated 76,448,323 73,773,253
Effect of the finance lease recognition
Amortization on leasehold land (281,477) (248,565)
Interest expense – finance lease (13,826) (10,879)
As restated 76,153,020 73,513,809

The effect of the above restatement to the statement of financial position follows:

2015
Property plant and 

equipment
Trade and other 
payables current

Trade and other 
payables non-current

As previously stated 63,878,993 6,999,181 -
Effect of the lease recognition 
Capitalization of lease 2,304,262 409,596 1,894,666
Amortization on leasehold land (281,477) - -
Interest expense – finance lease - 13,826 -
As restated 65,901,778 7,422,603 1,894,666

2014
As previously stated 65,769,531 3,861,466 -
Effect the lease recognition 
Capitalization of lease 2,304,262 391,421 1,912,841
Amortization on leasehold land (248,565) - -
Interest expense – finance lease - 10,879 -
As restated 67,825,228 4,263,766 1,912,841
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